IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JAMES F. COY, M.D., SIDNEY R.)
STEINBERG, M.D., and CLAUDE A.)
BOYD, M.D., on behalf of themselves)
and all others similarly situated,)
Appellants/Petitioners)

VS.

FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL)
INJURY COMPENSATION PLAN, FLORIDA)
BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY)
COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION, TOM)
GALLAGHER, in his official capacity)
as the head of THE FLORIDA)
DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE,
Appellees/Respondents)

SEP 4 1990

MEN CHARL COUNT

case no. $\frac{74.565}{}$

APPEAL FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FIRST DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

HON, KENT MASTERSON BROWN
11/4 First National Building
167 West Main Street

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- decision conflicts with I. First District's decisions of this Honorable Court respecting fundamental limitations on legislative power. Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation unreasonable classification creates an Florida-licensed physicians and grants special privileges to a closed class of Florida practitioners.
- II. The First District's decision conflicts with the decisions of this Honorable Court interpreting Article VII, Section 1 of the Florida Constitution because the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act does not definitely limit the amount of future tax increases to be imposed on non-participating Floridalicensed physicians or provide specific guidelines for determining "actuarial soundness".
- III. The First District's decision ignores essential differences between Florida-licensed physicians who reside and practice outside of Florida and those who reside and practice within Florida.

JURISDICTIONAL BASIS

The basis for the Petitioners' invocation of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction is the First District Court of Appeal's opinion expressly declaring valid Section 73 of Chapter 88-1, Laws of Florida, as amended by Sections 39 and 44 of Chapter 88-277, Laws of Florida, and as further amended by Section 6 of Chapter 89-186, Laws of Florida, all codified at Section 766.314, Florida Statutes (1989).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

The Petitioners, JAMES F. COY, M.D., SIDNEY R. STEINBERG, M.D. and CLAUDE A. BOYD, M.D., who were the Appellants below in case number 89-2569, filed this action in the Circuit Court, Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County, Florida, case number 89-1008, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, to have declared unconstitutional, and to enjoin the enforcement of, certain subsections of Section 73 of Chapter 88-1, as amended by Section 39 of Chapter 88-277 of the Laws of Florida, namely, \$766.314(4)(b)(1), \$766.314(5)(a) and \$766.314(7)(b), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.), and to recover the annual assessments paid pursuant to Section 73, specifically \$766.314(4)(b)(1), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.). A true and correct copy of these provisions is set forth in the Appendix.

Petitioner, JAMES F. COY, M.D., is a Florida-licensed general practitioner and is a resident and citizen of DeLand, Volusia County, Florida, practicing in Orlando, Florida. Petitioner, SIDNEY R. STEINBERG, M.D., is a Kentucky and Florida-licensed general and vascular surgeon and is a resident and citizen of Shelbyville, Kentucky. Dr. Steinberg practices general and vascular surgery in Shelbyville, Kentucky. Petitioner, CLAUDE A. BOYD, M.D., is a Georgia and Florida-licensed

dermatologist and is a resident and citizen of Augusta, Georgia. Dr. Boyd practices dermatology in Augusta, Georgia. None of the aforesaid Petitioners, in a full-time or part-time capacity, practice obstetrics, perform obstetrical services or intend to perform obstetrical services in any way. All object to the enforcement of the aforesaid subsections of \$766.314, Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.) See: T.R. 174-177.

On June 2, 1989, this action was consolidated with case number 89-4615 in the Circuit Court, Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County, Florida, on the motion of the Petitioners herein and the cases were tried before said court on June 13, 1989. On September 12, 1989, the trial court entered a Final Order upholding the constitutionality of the challenged statute. Petitioners filed a Notice of Appeal on September 25, 1989. The case was argued before the District Court of Appeal, First District, on May 15, 1990. The District Court of Appeal entered an Opinion on June 25, 1990, affirming the Order of the trial court. Petitioners filed a Motion for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc or, in the Alternative, for Certification of the Issues Raised to the Florida Supreme Court on July 10, 1990. The Motion was denied on July 31, 1990.

Under Section 73, all Florida-licensed physicians who do not participate in the FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION PLAN must pay an initial annual assessment of Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$250.00) by December 1, 1988 to the FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION. See: \$766.314(4)(b)(1), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.). Physicians are obligated to pay the assessment irrespective of whether they practice obstetrics or render any obstetrical services. Failure to pay the assessment will be grounds for disciplinary action by

the Department of Professional Regulation. See: \$766.314(6)(b), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.). Physicians who practice obstetrics or perform obstetrical services, either full time or part time, with certain very limited exceptions, may pay an initial assessment of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) and thus qualify for "participation" in the Plan. See: \$766.314(4)(c), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.). Although all Florida licensed physicians are required to pay the Two Hundred Fifty Dollar (\$250.00) assessment, those physicians who do not meet the qualifications listed above may not "participate" in the Plan. See: \$766.302(7), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.). To date, 27,922 Florida-licensed physicians have paid the Two Hundred Fifty Dollar (\$250.00) assessment; 17,000 have not. Only 535 eligible physicians (obstetricians and family practitioners practicing obstetrics) have determined to "participate" in the FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION PLAN. T.R. 305.

REASONS FOR ACCEPTING JURISDICTION

I. THE FIRST DISTRICT'S DECISION CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISIONS OF THIS COURT RESPECTING FUNDAMENTAL LIMITATIONS ON LEGISLATIVE POWER.

In expressly declaring valid the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act [§§766.314(4)(b)1, 766.314(5)(a) and 766.314(7)(b), Florida Statutes] (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"), the First District adopted the holding of the trial court.

The Equal Protection Clauses of the United States and Florida Constitutions prohibit the State legislature from making unreasonable classifications among persons in carrying out its legislative function. Florida Real Estate Comm. v. McGregor, Fla., 336 So.2d 1156 (1976); Eslin

v. Collins, Fla., 108 So.2d 889 (1959) In determining whether a statutory tax or regulatory scheme comports with Equal Protection principles, this Honorable Court has held that "the classification must be reasonable, not arbitrary, and must rest upon some ground having a fair and substantial relation to the object of the legislation so that all persons similarly and "the circumstanced shall be treated alike" that classification must rest upon some difference which bears a reasonable and just relation to the act in respect to which the classification is proposed and can never be made arbitrarily and without such basis". State ex. rel. Vars v. Knott, Fla., 184 So. 752, 754 (1938), appeal dismissed, 308 U.S. 506 (1939), vacated on other grounds, 308 U.S. 507 (1939).

In <u>State ex. rel. Watson v. Lee</u>, Fla., 24 So.2d 798 (1946), the Florida Supreme Court, <u>en banc</u>, examined the constitutional validity of the County Officers' and Employees' Retirement Act. The Court upheld the Act, because participation in the retirement plan was not compulsory. The Court indicated, however, that had the retirement plan been compulsory, with no guarantee to the employee of receiving benefits, the plan would have been violative of the Equal Protection (and Due Process) Clauses of the United States and Florida Constitutions. Id., at 800.

In <u>Eslin v. Collins</u>, Fla., 108 So.2d 889 (1959), this Honorable Court held that the 1957 amendment to the Naturopathy Act violated the Equal Protection Clauses of the United States and Florida Constitutions. The 1957 amendment prohibited the issuance of any new license to practice naturopathy, permitted licensed naturopaths in practice for two (2) years prior to the effective date of the amendment to continue such practice upon annual renewal of their licenses, but prohibited those licensed less than fifteen (15) years prior to the amendment from prescribing or administering

any drug or medicine. The Florida Supreme Court held the legislative classification to be unreasonable and arbitrary, and therefore violative of the Equal Protection Clauses of the United States and Florida Constitutions because the Court could "conceive of no reasonable basis for the attempt here made to grant special privileges to a limited group, itself a closed class, within the larger closed class". Id., at 891. See also: Liquor Store v. Continental Distilling Corp., Fla., 40 So.2d 371, 374 (1949)

Section 73 of the Act [\$766.314(4)(b)1, Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.)] requires (by means of a tax) physicians to pay into a plan established to underwrite the malpractice claims and awards for only those who practice obstetrics and choose to participate in the Plan. This has led to the arbitrary, unreasonable and, indeed, absurd result of requiring over forty thousand (40,000) Florida-licensed physicians to underwrite the malpractice premiums of a select group of five hundred thirty five (535) physicians. There is nothing in the Act to prevent this subclass of specially privileged Florida practitioners from decreasing. Over forty thousand (40,000) Florida-licensed physicians could be required to underwrite the malpractice premiums for as few as one hundred (100) -- or even ten (10) -practitioners who are eligible and actually choose to participate. The prior pronouncements of this Honorable Court compel the conclusion that such a scheme is manifestly oppressive and arbitrary and grants special privileges to a limited, closed class of practitioners. The Act at issue here fundamentally takes property from one private party and transfers it to the exclusvie benefit of another private party without legitimate reason or justification.

This Honorable Court has never squarely addressed the constitutionality of a statutory scheme such as the one at issue here.

Dept. of Ins. v. Southeast Volusia Hosp. Dist., Fla., 438 So.2d 815 (1983) illustrates this fact. In Southeast Volusia, the statutory scheme established by the challenged \$768.54(3)(c), Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.), which created the Florida Patient's Compensation Fund for all health care providers, was not mandatory. The statute clearly permitted health care providers to "elect" to join the fund. Those who "elected" to join the fund were required to pay a base or a prorated share of the yearly fees, depending upon when they "elected" to join. Hospitals were required to join the fund only if they could not demonstrate individual financial responsibility for malpractice claims. Unlike the Act being challenged in the present case, there was nothing mandatory about \$768.54(3)(c). Fla.Stat. (1988 Supp.).

II. THE FIRST DISTRICT'S DECISION CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISIONS OF THIS COURT INTERPRETING ARTICLE VII, SECTION 1 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

In expressly declaring valid the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Act [§§766.314(4)(b)1, 766.314(5)(a) and 766.314(7)(b), Florida Statutes], the First District concluded:

The appellants also contend that the statutory authorization for the Department of Insurance to proportionally increase assessments to maintain the Plan is an unlawful delegation of legislative taxing power. They argue that the "actuarially sound" standard set forth in the statute is insufficient to enable the Department of Insurance and the courts to determine whether the legislative intent is being implemented. Because of the Supreme Court's holding in Department of Ins. v. Southeast Volusia Hosp. Dist., 438 So.2d 815 (Fla. 1983), appeal dismissed, 466 U.S. 901, 104 S.Ct. 1673, 80 L.Ed.2d 149 (1984), we must reject the appellants' argument on this point. . . .

A-6, A-7

In <u>Stewart v. Daytona and New Smyrna Inlet District</u>, Fla., 114 So.545, 547 (1927), this Honorable Court explained the significance of

Article VII, Section 1, of the Florida Constitution when it held that a statute:

. . .purporting to authorize an administrative body to levy a tax without **definitely limiting** the rate of the levy or the amount to be collected, or the indebtedness that may be incurred to be paid by the tax, is an unconstitutional attempt to delegate the legislative power of taxation. . . (Emphasis added.)

In <u>Conner v. Joe Hatton, Inc.</u>, Fla., 203 So.2d 154 (1967), this Honorable Court applied the above rule to hold that a statute permitting the Commissioner of Agriculture to assess every person engaged in production, distribution or handling of sweet corn such person's <u>pro rata</u> share of the necessary expenses incurred in formulating, issuing, administering and enforcing marketing orders was an unconstitutional delegation of the legislature's power to tax.

The Act being challenged here is completely distinguishable from the statute challenged in <u>Southeast Volusia</u>. In <u>Southeast Volusia</u>, the statutory scheme was **voluntary**, **not compulsory**, and the statute set **definite limits** on the amount which voluntarily participating physicians could be assessed in the future. In <u>Southeast Volusia</u>, §768.54(3)(c), <u>Fla.Stat.</u>, provided that the basic fees for the **voluntary** Patients Compensation Fund would be "established on an actuarially sound basis" **and** that additional fees may be charged, but shall be "appropriately prorated for the portion of the year for which the health care provider participated in the fund", based upon "past and prospective loss and expense experience in different types of practices in different geographical areas within the state", "prior claims experience of the members covered under the fund", and "risk factors for persons who are retired, semi-retired or part-time professionals". The legislature mandated "that actuarial soundess be

determined based on the above enumerated considerations". Tallahassee Mem.

v. Fla. Patient's Comp. Fund, 466 So.2d 379, 381 (Fla.App. 1 Dist. 1985),

n. 3.

Further, §768.54(3)(c), Fla.Stat., provided that:

Such base fees may be adjusted downward for any fiscal year in which a lesser amount would be adequate and in which the additional fee would not be necessary to maintain the solvency of Such additional fee shall be based on not more than the fund. two geographical areas with three categories of practice and with categories which contemplate separate risk ratings for hospitals, for health maintenance organizations, for ambulatory surgical facilities, and for other medical facilities. Each fiscal year of the fund shall operate independently of preceding fiscal years. Participants shall only be liable for assessments for claims from years during which they were members of the fund; in cases in which a participant is a member of the fund for less than the total fiscal year, a member shall be subject to assessments for that year on a pro rata basis determined by the percentage of participation for the year. The fund shall be maintained at not more than \$15,000,000 per fiscal year.

Dept. of Ins. v. Southeast Volusia Hosp. Dist., Fla., 438 So.2d 815, 818 (1983)

In contrast to \$768.54, <u>Fla.Stat.</u>, nowhere in \$766.314, <u>Fla.Stat.</u> (1988 Supp.) can one find what considerations or factors shall be taken into account in determining "actuarial soundness". What factors shall be taken into account in determining the amount of increases needed to achieve "actuarial soundness" is left to the unbridled discretion of the FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED NEUROLOGICAL INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION (hereinafter "the Association"), a private entity, and the Department of Insurance. Neither Article VII, Section 1, of the Florida Constitution nor the decision of this Honorable Court in <u>Southeast Volusia</u> countenance such an utter lack of guidance for determining future increases in tax assessments.

III. THE FIRST DISTRICT'S DECISION IGNORES ESSENTIAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN FLORIDA-LICENSED PHYSICIANS WHO RESIDE AND PRACTICE OUTSIDE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA AND THOSE WHO RESIDE AND PRACTICE WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

In holding that the whole "team" of health care providers stand to benefit from the Act, the First District ignored essential differences between physicians practicing within the State of Florida and those practicing outside of Florida. Out-of-state physicians do not treat any patients in Florida; they do not have offices in Florida; they do not hold hospital privileges in Florida; and they do not pay liability insurance premiums in Florida. Out-of-state physicians can receive no benefits under the Act. Yet they are nonetheless liable for initial assessments and any unlimited future increased assessments. Thus, the First District's holding runs directly counter to the principle that a legislative classification must have "some just relation to, or reasonable basis in, essential differences of conditions and circumstances with reference to the subject regulated". Eslin v. Collins, Fla., 108 So.2d 889, 891 (1959); see also, Florida Real Estate Comm. v. McGregor, Fla., 336 So.2d 1156 (1976). As applied to physicians who reside and practice medicine outside of the State of Florida, the Act is "compulsory with no commitment as to benefits to be derived from it". State ex. rel. Watson v. Lee, Fla., 24 So.2d 798, 800 (1946).

In remanding a case back to the trial court for purposes of determining whether Camden, New Jersey ordinance which required at least forty percent (40%) of the employees of contractors and subcontractors working in city construction projects to be city residents violated the Privileges and Immunities Clauses of non-residents, the United States Supreme Court observed:

It is true that New Jersey citizens not residing in Camden will be affected by the ordinance as well as out-of-state citizens. And it is true that the disadvantaged New Jersey residents have no claim under the Privileges and Immunities Clause. [Citation omitted.] But New Jersey residents at least have a chance to remedy at the polls any discrimination against them. Out-of-state citizens have no similar opportunity...

United Building & Construction Trades Council v. Camden, 465 U.S. 208, 217, 104 S.Ct. 1020, 1027, 79 L.Ed.2d 249 (1984)

In the case at bar, the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan blatantly takes advantage of non resident physicians' inability to remedy the adverse effects of the taxation at the polls. Non-resident physicians have no political means by which to remedy their exclusion from the Plan. Additionally, the Plan fails to take into account the substantial differences between resident and non-resident, Florida licensed physicians. Accordingly, the Act offends the Privileges and Immunities of two (2) of the Petitioners herein; both non-resident Florida licensees.

CONCLUSION

For all the foregoing reasons, this Honorable Court should assume jurisdiction.