IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JAMES F. COY, M.D., SIDNEY R. STEINBERG, M.D., and CLAUDE A. BOYD, M.D., on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated,

Appellants,

vs.

CASE NO.: 76,565

FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED
NEUROLOGICAL INJURY
COMPENSATION PLAN,
FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED
NEUROLOGICAL INJURY
COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION, and
TOM GALLAGHER,
in his official capacity
as the head of the FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE,

Appellees.

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF APPELLEE FLORIDA BIRTH-RELATED INJURY COMPENSATION ASSOCIATION

WILBUR E. BREWTON, ESQ.
J. RILEY DAVIS, ESQ.
TAYLOR, BRION, BUKER & GREENE
225 S. ADAMS STREET, STE. 250
POST OFFICE BOX 11189
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302-3189

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Florida-Birth Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association (NICA), Appellee, adopts and incorporates herein by reference the appellants' statement of the case with the following modification. The named appellants are seeking review of the decision of the First District Court of Appeal, State of Florida, case no. 89-2593. The District Court's decision had consolidated for review the appeals of Drs. James F. Coy, et al. from a decision of the Leon County Circuit Court with the appeal of Dr. James T. McGibony, Dr. Joseph Von Thorn, Dr. Mark Ziffer, and Dr. William Barfield from the same Circuit Court decision.

Both groups of appellants sought review of the abovereferenced District Court decision in this court. Appellants
James F. Coy, et al. timely filed their notice of appeal but the
Notice oa Appeal filed by Dr. James T. McGibony, et al. was
untimely. By order dated September 13th, 1990, with a reference
of case no. 76,601, this court dismissed appellants' Dr. James T.
McGibony, et al. appeal as being untimely. Accordingly, appellee
NICA will respond only to the jurisdictional brief of appellants
James F. Coy, et al.

The Florida legislature, during its special session in February of 1988, enacted Chapter 88-1, Laws of Florida. A portion of Chapter 88-1 created the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan and provided the means of funding same. (See §766.301-§766.316, Fla. Stat. (1988)).

Pursuant to §766.306-§766.316, Fla. Stat. (1988), the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan (hereinafter the "Plan") was created and provided for a no fault compensation system for certain neurologically injured infants. In order to finance the Plan, the legislature developed a financing scheme, found in §73 of Chapter 88-1, Laws of Florida, now §766.314, Fla. Stat. (1988), which requires all physicians licensed in the State of Florida, all hospitals in the State of Florida, and all physicians who are qualified for and chose to participate in the Plan, to pay certain defined assessments for the purpose of funding the Plan. In addition, the legislature provided for an Insurance Commissioners Regulatory Trust Fund to ensure the financial soundness of the Plan. Under certain circumstances, casualty insurance carriers would also contribute to the Plan. (See §766.315(5), (6), (7), Fla. Stat. (1988)).

Beginning January 1, 1990, licensed physicians were to be assessed annually in accordance with the plan of operation, and those physicians not participating in the Plan would be assessed \$250 annually, with those participating in the Plan being assessed \$5,000 annually. (See §766.314(4), Fla. Stat.). Additional assessments could be imposed pursuant to the provisions of \$766.314(7) Fla. Stat.

Likewise, pursuant to §766.314(5), (b), if the assessments collected pursuant to paragraph (4) of §766.314, Fla. Stat., and the appropriation of funds already provided by §76, of Chapter 88-1, Laws of Florida, were insufficient to maintain the Plan on an actuarily sound basis, the legislature provided for the

appropriation of an additional amount of up to \$20,000,000 from the Commissioners Regulatory Trust Fund. Thereafter, pursuant to \$766.314(5)(c), and after taking into account the assessments collected pursuant to paragraph (4) of \$766.315, Fla. Stat., (the assessments made directly against physicians) and taking into consideration appropriations from the Insurance Commissioners Regulatory Trust Fund, if additional funds were still necessary to maintain the Plan on an actuarially sound basis, the Florida Department of Insurance was impowered to assess each entity licensed to issue casualty insurance in Florida an annual assessment in an amount determined by the Department pursuant to paragraph (7)(a) of \$766.314, Fla. Stat. (1988).

Accordingly, beginning January 1, 1990, all physicians contributing to the Plan were required to annually make a payment equal to the initial assessment (\$250 or \$5,000) together with any additional assessments made and justified pursuant to \$766.314(7)(b) (1988) after all the sources of funding had been exhausted. Section 766.314(7)(b) provides as follows:

"(b) If the Department of Insurance finds that the plan cannot be maintained on an actuarially sound basis based on the assessments and appropriations listed in (4) and (5), the Department shall increase the assessment specified in (4) on a proportional basis as needed."

In effect, after an actuarial investigation and a determination that the Plan, after receipt of the \$250 and \$5,000 assessments and all funds appropriated from the Commissioners Regulatory Trust Fund, could not be maintained on an actuarially

sound basis, the Department of Insurance was authorized to increase the assessments above the initial assessment amount on a proportional basis as needed to maintain the Plan on an actuarially sound basis. It is the Department of Insurance's responsibility to make the actuarial investigation and to determine the soundness of the Plan and to determine the amount of needed additional assessments, if any.

The appellants filed a lawsuit attacking the constitutional validity of those portions of §766.314 (1988) providing for the assessment of non-participating physicians for the purpose of funding the Plan.

The Leon County Circuit Court considered all issues raised by appellants and confirmed the constitutional validity of the various assessment provisions of §766.314, Fla. Stat. The First District Court of Appeal by opinion dated June 25, 1990 affirmed the decision of the Leon County Circuit Court in all respects.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The appellants have sought to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court under the provisions of Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A) and Rule 9.120, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure (FRAP). The basis of the jurisdiction is predicated on the decision of the First District Court of Appeal expressly declaring valid a State statute.

Pursuant to Rule 9.120(d) the appellants' brief on jurisdiction must be limited solely to the issue of the Supreme Court's jurisdiction. It is not appropriate to argue the merits of the substantive issues involved in the case or to discuss any matters not relevant to the threshold jurisdictional issue. The appellants' brief on jurisdiction, however, discusses in detail the merits of the substantive issues involved in the case and does not discuss in any detail the matters relevant to the threshold jurisdictional issue and, therefore, should not be considered by this court for determination as to whether to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

The appellants have made general arguments that the assessments violate their due process and equal protection rights. None of these arguments have value as precedent. The appellants also maintain that the subject statute improperly delegated the power to tax to the Department of Insurance because the funds derived from the assessments are paid to a "private entity" and because the Department of Insurance has the authority to levy additional assessments if necessary to maintain the fund

on an actuarially sound basis. It is contended by the appellants that an actuarially sound standard is too vague of a standard to pass constitutional muster. However, the most pertinent issue in this case i.e. the constitutionality of an actuarially sound standard as a basis for determining any increase of assessments, has already been considered and affirmed by this court in Department of Insurance v. Southeast Volusia Hospital District, 438 So.2d 815 (Fla. 1983), appeal dismissed, 466 U.S. 901, 104 S.Ct. 1673, 80 LEd. 2d. 149 (1984). Accordingly, there is no necessity nor justification for this court to accept jurisdiction in this cause as the case will have no value as precedent.

ARGUMENT

The appellants have sought to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this court on the basis that the District Court decision sought to be reviewed has expressly ruled that a State statute is constitutionally valid. Pursuant to Rule 9.120(d), FRAP, however, the appellant/petitioners' brief on jurisdiction must be limited solely to the issue of the Supreme Court's jurisdiction i.e. whether the District Court expressly ruled that a State statute was constitutionally valid. Rather than discuss this issue, the appellants' brief is totally devoted to argument of the merits of the substantive issues involved in the case and, in effect, discusses matters not relevant to the threshold jurisdictional issue. While it is proper for the appellant/petitioner to include a very short statement as to why the Supreme Court should exercise its discretion and entertain the case on the merits, appellants' brief goes way beyond the spirit and intent of Rule 9.120, FRAP and, therefore, should not be considered by the court in making its determination as to whether to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction in this cause.

Appellee, NICA would respectfully suggest to the court that this is not a case in which this court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction. As can be seen from the decision of the First District Court of Appeal and the Final Order of the Leon County Circuit Court, which was attached to appellants' brief as an appendix, the appellants made general and broad arguments regarding violation of their constitutional rights under the due

process and equal protection clauses of the United States and Florida Constitutions i.e. the assessments deprived them of their rights to due process and equal protection of the law. Any decision by this court on those issues would have no value as precedent and consequently, no necessity nor justification exists for this court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction.

The only issue of interest would relate to the right of the Florida Department of Insurance to increase assessments if the Department determines, after an actuarial investigation, that an increase in assessments is necessary in order to maintain the Plan on an actuarially sound basis. The appellants have maintained that the delegation of this authority to the Department of Insurance is an unlawful delegation of the legislative taxing power. This result is reached in the appellants' opinion because the "actuarially sound" standard set forth in the statute is insufficient to enable the Department of Insurance and courts to determine whether the legislative intent is being implemented.

Hospital District, supra, this court specifically upheld the "actuarially sound" standard as being sufficient to satisfy constitutional requirements. Accordingly, no necessity or justification exists in this cause for the court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction as the decision would have little or no value as precedent.

As this court is aware, the jurisdiction of this court was substantially revised by constitutional amendment in 1980. In the first case considered by the court after the amendments, this

court in <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356 (S.Ct. 1980) analyzed, from a historical perspective, amendments to the jurisdiction of the court and reaffirmed and concluded that it was never intended that the District Courts of Appeal should be intermediate courts. The Supreme Court was intended as a supervisory body in the judicial system, exercising appellate power only in certain specified areas essential to the settlement of issues of public importance and the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice. Review by the District Courts, in most instances, would be final and absolute.

In the instant case, there has been no representation nor argument by the appellants that this case involves an area essential to the settlement of issues of great public importance and/or the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice. Instead, it is clear that appellants' primary arguments are general in nature with the one issue of interest i.e. the "actuarially sound" standard issue having already been decided by this court.

Accordingly, the appellee NICA would respectfully request this court to decline to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

The appellants' brief is primarily an argument on the merits of the substantive issues involved in this case and is not relevant to the threshold jurisdictional issue and, as such, the brief should not be considered by this court in its determination to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction. The appellants have not justified a decision by this court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction since the appellants have not demonstrated that a determination by this court on the merits would result in any value as precedent, nor that the issues involved are of great public importance and/or that a decision is necessary for the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice.

Accordingly, it is respectfully suggested that this court should decline to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction.

J. Riley Davis

Taylor, Brion, Buker & Greene 225 South Adams Street, Ste. 250 Post Office Box 11189 Tallahassee, Florida 32302-3189

(904) 222-7717

Attorney for Appellee, NICA